The Verb: Present Perfect, Present Perfect Continuous
Present Perfect

	Affirmative
	Interrogative
	Negative

	I have worked
	have I worked?
	I have not worked

	you have worked
	have you worked?
	you have not worked

	he/she/it has worked
	has he/she/it worked?
	he/she/it hasn’t worked

	we have worked
	have we worked?
	we have not worked

	they have worked
	have they worked?
	They have not  (haven’t) worked


Formation

The present perfect is built up by means of the auxiliary verb have/has+ participle II of the notional verb.

Use:

This tense may be said to be a mixture of present and past. It always implies a strong connection with the present and is chiefly used in conversations, newspapers, radio reports, lectures and letters.

Finished events connected with the present

1. The present perfect is used just to name a past occurrence without mentioning any definite circumstances under which it occurred. (It may have an obvious result in the present):

I have heard about him. They say he is a very decent person.

They have brought their children with them.

He can’t come to your party because he’s broken his leg.

Note: Although the present perfect is mainly used for fairly recent occurrences, we may sometimes find the present perfect used for actions which took place long ago. (It may also express recurrent actions or states of some duration):

“You have so often been helpful in the past.” “I have tried,” said Joseph.

“You’ve all been young once, you know. We’ve all felt it, Roy.”

– I am afraid they’ll find her rather dull.

– I’ve only seen her once. It was a long time ago and then she didn’t speak much. 

2. The present perfect is the most normal tense for giving (or asking) news of recent events:

I hear the pound has fallen against the dollar.

Do you know that the number of unemployed has reached 30.000?

I have bought a new dress to wear at their wedding.

Have you seen the current production of “Romeo and Juliet?”

Notice that the present perfect is not used to talk about a finished event, if we say when it happened. Compare:

There has been an explosion at the station.

There was an explosion at the station last night.

3. As it has been mentioned above, this tense is often used in newspapers and radio reports lectures and letters to introduce an action or an event which will then be described in the simple past tense (when we go into details, the present perfect changes to the simple past or past continuous. The time of the action is very often given in the second sentence):

There has been a plane crash near Bristol. Witnesses say that there was an explosion as the aircraft was taking off.

Two prisoners have escaped from Dartmoor. They used a ladder, climbed a twenty foot wall and got away in a stolen car.

Dear George,

Lots of things have happened since I last wrote to you. I have bought a new car. I bought it last week. It cost me a lot of money…

‘Time up to now’

4. We often use the present perfect for past events when we are thinking of a period of time continuing up to the present – for example when we use indefinite time adverbs that mean “at some time / at any time up to now”: like ever, before, never, yet, already, recently, lately, so far, just…:

I am sure we have never met before.

Have you ever been to Europe?

They have just missed their train.

Note: In an informal style, simple past tenses are sometimes possible with always, ever and never when they refer to ‘time up to now:

I always knew I could trust you. (or I’ve always known…)

Did you ever see anything like that before? (or have you ever seen….?)

I never heard such nonsense. (Am. Eng.)

I didn’t call Bob yet. (Am. Eng.)

Note: Notice the use of the simple past with just now:

That rule was just now explained to us.

5. The present perfect is used with today/this morning/this week when these periods aren’t finished:

I haven’t seen Alice this morning. (the period isn’t over yet)

I didn’t see Alice this morning. (the period is over)

Repetition and continuation to now

6. We can use the present perfect to say that something has happened

several times up to the present:

How often have you been in love in your life?

He has written five letters to her since lunchtime.

7. We often use the present perfect to talk about how long present situation has lasted. In this case either the whole period of duration of the action is marked or its starting point: for an hour, for a long time, for the past/in the last few days, in years, in a long while …, since last spring, since she was ten years old etc.:

The children haven’t had any fun in a long while.

That house has been empty for six months.

He has been like that since his childhood.

They haven’t seen each other since they left school.

However, we sometimes find in both parts of the complex sentence two parallel actions which began in the past and continue into the present. In this case the present perfect (or the present perfect continuous) is found in both clauses:

I have loved him since I have known him. (parallel actions which began in the past and continue into the present).

She has been singing since she has been taking a bath.

8. Care should be taken when we use the present perfect to express the duration of an action. If the period of duration belongs to the past time sphere, the simple past is used and if the period of duration comes close to the moment of speaking, or includes it, the present perfect should be used. Compare:

How long have you been in Paris. (the person is in Paris)

How long did you stay in Paris? (the person is no longer in Paris)

The use of the present perfect with special questions

9. The simple past is used with the special questions when and how because the attention in such sentences is drawn to the circumstances of the action rather than to the occurrence itself. But as for what, what…for, where and why both the present perfect and simple past may be used, depending on the meaning to be conveyed:

When did you pass your exam? (present perfect is never used in when questions)

What books did you read when you were on holiday?

What books have you read about it?

Where were you yesterday? I came to your office but you weren’t there.

Where have you been all this time?

Note 4: Notice that we usually prefer a simple past tense when we identify the person, thing or circumstances responsible for a present situation (because we are focusing on the past cause, not the present result.) Compare:

“They have met, sir” said the assistant manager.

“Who has met?” asked John St. Jacques.

Who has dropped this tten pound note?

Some fool has let the cat in. 

Look what John has given me!

(Who let that cat in?) (Who gave you that watch?)

– “Why are you crying?” – “Granny hit me.”

That’s a nice picture. Did you paint it yourself?

How did you get that bruise?

The Chinese invented paper.

Time clauses

10. The present perfect is found in time clauses after when, as soon as, after, until to express a future action (to show that one thing will be accomplished before the other thing starts.):

Can I borrow that magazine when you have finished it?

But: When I phone Kate this evening, I’ll invite her to the party. (in this example the two things happen together)

We may find the simple present in this type of clauses. The choice of the form (simple present or present perfect) depends on the lexical meaning of the verb. With durative verbs the present perfect is more common. With terminative verbs the use of the both forms is possible:

I can tell you whether the machine is good or bad when I have tried it.

I’ll tell you when I’ve finished /finish it.

11. Note that we say “It’s the first/second third…time something has happened”:

It’s the second time I have lost my wallet.

It’s the third time she has broken a cup.

Present Perfect Continuous

	Affirmative
	Interrogative
	Negative

	I have been 

working
	have I been 

working?
	I have not 

working

	you have been 

working
	have you been 

working?
	you have not 

been 

working

	he/she/it has 

been working
	has he/she/it been 

working?
	he/she/it hasn’t 

been 

working

	we have been 

working
	have we been 

working?
	we have not been 

working

	they have been 

working
	have they been

 working?
	They have not 

 (haven’t) 

been working


Formation

The present perfect continuous is built up by means of the auxiliary verb to be in the present perfect and participle I of the notional verb:

have/has been + participle I.

Use:

We usually use the present perfect continuous to talk about actions which started in the past and are still going on or which have just stopped and have present results. It is not used in narration where reference is made to past events. Like the present perfect, the present perfect continuous is found in present time contexts. It is used in conversations, newspaper and radio reports, lectures and letters.

‘Up to now’ focus

1. The present perfect continuous is used to express an action, which began before the moment of speaking and continues into it or up to it. In this meaning it is parallel to the present perfect and may be used with the same indications of time as have already been described in the present perfect tense (for a long time, for the last three days, since last spring, since my childhood etc.):

It has been raining / has rained steadily since last Saturday.

He has been jogging every morning for the last month.

I have been waiting for you for three hours.

“She looks tired.” “She has been writing letters all morning”.

How long have you been learning English?

Continuous activity recently finished or coming to an end

2. The present perfect continuous is used to express an action which was in progress quite recently and has a connection with now. The precise time limits of the action aren’t specified (it is only occasionally found with indications of time). In this meaning the present perfect is not parallel to the present perfect continuous:

He began abruptly: “I’ve been thinking about what you told me.”

“What have you been doing?”“I have been shutting the windows. The wind is rising.”

“You are out of breath.” “I have been running all the way to the office.”

But: “You look tired.” “I was cycling non-stop until five o’clock.”

I’ve just been having such a delightful chat with Margaret.

(Sometimes just is found with the present perfect continuous form).

3. This tense is common when we are talking about situations which are just coming to an end or may change:

I have been having violin lessons every two weeks, but I think I’ll make it every week from now on.

4. We can use the present perfect continuous to talk about repeated actions and events, (but not if we say how many/ how many times they have happened because this stresses the idea of completion):

I have been taking French lessons this year.

I have been playing a lot of tennis recently.

But: I have played tennis three times this week.
Continuous change or development

5. We generally use present perfect continuous to talk about continuous change or development, even if this is permanent:

Scientists believe that the universe has been expanding steadily since the beginning of time.

Simple Perfect and Present Perfect Continuous

Basic contrasts:

1. The present perfect continuous focuses on the action / situation itself, looking at it as a continuous, extended activity (not necessarily finished). The simple perfect on the other hand looks more at the ideas of completion and present result. Compare:

I have been reading your book. (focus on continuous activity)

I have read your book. (focus on completion)

I must have a bath. I have been planting new rose bushes. (focus on continuous activity)

My garden looks nice. I’ve planted a lot of new rose bushes. (focus on result)

2. We can use the present perfect continuous to talk about repeated actions and events, but not if we say how often they have happened because this stresses the idea of completion. We also avoid using the present perfect continuous with how many and how many times questions. Compare:

I have been playing a lot of tennis recently.

I have played tennis three times this week. (how many times)

I have been ironing since morning.

I have ironed five shirts so far. (how many)

How many pages of that book have you read?

3. We often prefer the present perfect continuous to talk about more temporary actions and situations; when we talk about longer lasting or permanent situations we often prefer the simple present perfect:

That man has been standing on the corner all day.

For 900 years the castle has stood on the hill above the village.

However, both tenses are possible in cases like this, with a slight difference of emphasis:

He has worked / has been working in the same job for thirty years.

4. Remember that a number of verbs are not used in the continuous form, but that some of these can be used in this form in certain cases. We can therefore say:

Have you been hearing from him recently?

I have been wanting to throw at him something for a long time.

Note: The present perfect continuous is also found in negative sentences but in this case the negation doesn’t refer to the action but to the length of its duration or to the circumstances attending the action:

I haven’t been sleeping well recently (which means I have been sleeping but my sleep hasn’t been sound enough).

